

**EIGHTY SECOND DAY**

---

MORNING SESSION

---

Senate Chamber, Olympia  
Friday, March 31, 2017

The Senate was called to order at 9:01 a.m. by the President Pro Tempore, Senator Sheldon presiding. The Secretary called the roll and announced to the President Pro Tempore that all Senators were present with the exceptions of Senators Billig, Nelson and Van De Wege.

The Sergeant at Arms Color Guard consisting of Pages Mr. Peter Yunker and Mr. Karlton Hisaw, presented the Colors. Page Miss Astrid Duenas led the Senate in the Pledge of Allegiance. The prayer was offered by Rabbi Adam Rubin of Congregation Beth Shalom, Seattle.

MOTION

On motion of Senator Fain, the reading of the Journal of the previous day was dispensed with and it was approved.

MOTION

There being no objection, the Senate advanced to the first order of business.

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

March 29, 2017

SB 5809 Prime Sponsor, Senator Rivers: Extending surcharges on court filing fees for deposit in the judicial stabilization trust account to July 1, 2021. Reported by Committee on Ways & Means

MAJORITY recommendation: Do pass. Signed by Senators Braun, Chair; Brown, Vice Chair; Ranker, Ranking Minority Member; Rolfes, Assistant Ranking Minority Member, Operating Budget; Frockt, Assistant Ranking Minority Member, Capital Budget; Bailey; Becker; Billig; Carlyle; Conway; Darneille; Fain; Hasegawa; Keiser; Miloscia; Pedersen; Rivers and Zeiger.

MINORITY recommendation: Do not pass. Signed by Senators Honeyford, Vice Chair, Capital Budget ; Schoesler and Warnick.

MINORITY recommendation: That it be referred without recommendation. Signed by Senator Padden.

Referred to Committee on Rules for second reading.

March 29, 2017

SB 5866 Prime Sponsor, Senator Brown: Creating a tax court for the state of Washington. Reported by Committee on Ways & Means

MAJORITY recommendation: That Second Substitute Senate Bill No. 5866 be substituted therefor, and the second substitute bill do pass. Signed by Senators Braun, Chair; Brown, Vice Chair; Honeyford, Vice Chair, Capital Budget ;

Bailey; Becker; Fain; Miloscia; Padden; Rivers; Schoesler; Warnick and Zeiger.

MINORITY recommendation: Do not pass. Signed by Senators Ranker, Ranking Minority Member; Rolfes, Assistant Ranking Minority Member, Operating Budget; Carlyle; Conway; Darneille; Hasegawa; Keiser and Pedersen.

MINORITY recommendation: That it be referred without recommendation. Signed by Senators Frockt, Assistant Ranking Minority Member, Capital Budget and Billig.

Referred to Committee on Rules for second reading.

March 29, 2017

SB 5892 Prime Sponsor, Senator Fortunato: Concerning regional transit authority capital project reauthorization. Reported by Committee on Transportation

MAJORITY recommendation: That Substitute Senate Bill No. 5892 be substituted therefor, and the substitute bill do pass. Signed by Senators King, Chair; Sheldon, Vice Chair; Hobbs, Ranking Minority Member; Ericksen; Fortunato; Hawkins; O'Ban; Walsh and Wilson.

MINORITY recommendation: Do not pass. Signed by Senators Liias; Cleveland; Saldaña; Takko and Van De Wege.

Referred to Committee on Rules for second reading.

March 29, 2017

SB 5893 Prime Sponsor, Senator O'Ban: Concerning the administration of motor vehicle excise taxes by regional transit authorities. Reported by Committee on Transportation

MAJORITY recommendation: Do pass. Signed by Senators King, Chair; Sheldon, Vice Chair; Hobbs, Ranking Minority Member; Ericksen; Fortunato; Hawkins; O'Ban; Walsh and Wilson.

MINORITY recommendation: Do not pass. Signed by Senators Liias; Cleveland; Saldaña; Takko and Van De Wege.

Referred to Committee on Rules for second reading.

March 29, 2017

SB 5905 Prime Sponsor, Senator Hobbs: Concerning taxpayer relief for persons subject to a motor vehicle excise tax imposed by a regional transit authority. Reported by Committee on Transportation

MAJORITY recommendation: That Substitute Senate Bill No. 5905 be substituted therefor, and the substitute bill do pass. Signed by Senators King, Chair; Hobbs, Ranking Minority Member; Liias; Cleveland; Ericksen; Fortunato; Hawkins; Saldaña; Takko; Van De Wege and Walsh.

MINORITY recommendation: Do not pass. Signed by Senator O'Ban.

MINORITY recommendation: That it be referred without recommendation. Signed by Senator Wilson.

Referred to Committee on Rules for second reading.

March 29, 2017

SB 5906 Prime Sponsor, Senator Saldaña: Establishing a regional transit authority rebate program for low-income individuals. Reported by Committee on Transportation

MAJORITY recommendation: Do pass. Signed by Senators King, Chair; Hobbs, Ranking Minority Member; Liias; Cleveland; Ericksen; Fortunato; Hawkins; Saldaña; Takko; Van De Wege; Walsh and Wilson.

Referred to Committee on Rules for second reading.

March 29, 2017

SJR 8209 Prime Sponsor, Senator Brown: Authorizing a tax court. Reported by Committee on Ways & Means

MAJORITY recommendation: Do pass. Signed by Senators Braun, Chair; Brown, Vice Chair; Honeyford, Vice Chair, Capital Budget ; Bailey; Becker; Fain; Miloscia; Padden; Rivers; Schoesler; Warnick and Zeiger.

MINORITY recommendation: Do not pass. Signed by Senators Ranker, Ranking Minority Member; Carlyle; Conway; Darneille; Hasegawa; Keiser and Pedersen.

MINORITY recommendation: That it be referred without recommendation. Signed by Senators Rolfes, Assistant Ranking Minority Member, Operating Budget; Frockt, Assistant Ranking Minority Member, Capital Budget and Billig.

Referred to Committee on Rules for second reading.

March 29, 2017

SHB 1100 Prime Sponsor, Committee on Appropriations: Concerning concealed pistol license renewal notices. Reported by Committee on Ways & Means

MAJORITY recommendation: Do pass. Signed by Senators Braun, Chair; Brown, Vice Chair; Honeyford, Vice Chair, Capital Budget ; Bailey; Becker; Conway; Fain; Miloscia; Padden; Rivers; Schoesler; Warnick and Zeiger.

MINORITY recommendation: Do not pass. Signed by Senators Ranker, Ranking Minority Member; Rolfes, Assistant Ranking Minority Member, Operating Budget; Frockt, Assistant Ranking Minority Member, Capital Budget; Carlyle and Darneille.

MINORITY recommendation: That it be referred without recommendation. Signed by Senators Billig; Hasegawa; Keiser and Pedersen.

Referred to Committee on Rules for second reading.

March 29, 2017

SHB 1183 Prime Sponsor, Committee on Appropriations: Authorizing specified local governments, including

municipalities and federally recognized Indian tribes, that typically have limited access to economic development resources, to designate a portion of their territory as a creative district subject to certification by the Washington state arts commission. Reported by Committee on Ways & Means

MAJORITY recommendation: Do pass as amended by Committee on Agriculture, Water, Trade & Economic Development. Signed by Senators Braun, Chair; Brown, Vice Chair; Honeyford, Vice Chair, Capital Budget ; Ranker, Ranking Minority Member; Rolfes, Assistant Ranking Minority Member, Operating Budget; Frockt, Assistant Ranking Minority Member, Capital Budget; Bailey; Becker; Billig; Carlyle; Conway; Darneille; Fain; Hasegawa; Keiser; Miloscia; Padden; Pedersen; Rivers; Schoesler; Warnick and Zeiger.

Referred to Committee on Rules for second reading.

March 29, 2017

SHB 1273 Prime Sponsor, Committee on Transportation: Concerning the alignment of state statutes with federal standards for the issuance of nondomiciled commercial drivers' licenses and nondomiciled commercial learners' permits. Reported by Committee on Transportation

MAJORITY recommendation: Do pass as amended. Signed by Senators King, Chair; Sheldon, Vice Chair; Hobbs, Ranking Minority Member; Liias; Cleveland; Fortunato; Hawkins; O'Ban; Saldaña; Takko; Van De Wege; Walsh and Wilson.

MINORITY recommendation: Do not pass. Signed by Senator Ericksen.

Referred to Committee on Rules for second reading.

March 29, 2017

2SHB 1338 Prime Sponsor, Committee on Appropriations: Addressing the Washington state health insurance pool. Reported by Committee on Ways & Means

MAJORITY recommendation: Do pass. Signed by Senators Braun, Chair; Brown, Vice Chair; Honeyford, Vice Chair, Capital Budget ; Ranker, Ranking Minority Member; Rolfes, Assistant Ranking Minority Member, Operating Budget; Frockt, Assistant Ranking Minority Member, Capital Budget; Bailey; Becker; Billig; Carlyle; Conway; Darneille; Fain; Hasegawa; Keiser; Miloscia; Padden; Pedersen; Rivers; Schoesler; Warnick and Zeiger.

Referred to Committee on Rules for second reading.

March 29, 2017

ESHB 1371 Prime Sponsor, Committee on Transportation: Modifying the infraction of and penalties for distracted driving. Reported by Committee on Transportation

MAJORITY recommendation: Do pass as amended. Signed by Senators King, Chair; Sheldon, Vice Chair; Hobbs, Ranking Minority Member; Liias; Cleveland; Fortunato; O'Ban; Saldaña; Takko; Van De Wege and Wilson.

MINORITY recommendation: Do not pass. Signed by Senators Ericksen and Hawkins.

EIGHTY SECOND DAY, MARCH 31, 2017

2017 REGULAR SESSION

MINORITY recommendation: That it be referred without recommendation. Signed by Senator Walsh.

Referred to Committee on Rules for second reading.

Referred to Committee on Rules for second reading.

March 29, 2017

ESHB 1481 Prime Sponsor, Committee on Transportation: Creating uniformity in driver training education provided by school districts and commercial driver training schools. Reported by Committee on Transportation

ESHB 1808 Prime Sponsor, Committee on Transportation: Providing support for foster youth in obtaining drivers' licenses and automobile liability insurance. Reported by Committee on Transportation

MAJORITY recommendation: Do pass as amended. Signed by Senators King, Chair; Sheldon, Vice Chair; Hobbs, Ranking Minority Member; Liias; Cleveland; Ericksen; Fortunato; Hawkins; O'Ban; Saldaña; Takko; Van De Wege; Walsh and Wilson.

MAJORITY recommendation: Do pass. Signed by Senators King, Chair; Sheldon, Vice Chair; Hobbs, Ranking Minority Member; Liias; Cleveland; Ericksen; Fortunato; Hawkins; O'Ban; Saldaña; Takko; Van De Wege; Walsh and Wilson.

Referred to Committee on Rules for second reading.

Referred to Committee on Rules for second reading.

March 29, 2017

SHB 1566 Prime Sponsor, Committee on Early Learning & Human Services: Concerning the definition of work activity for the purposes of the WorkFirst program. Reported by Committee on Ways & Means

E2SHB 1819 Prime Sponsor, Committee on Appropriations: Reducing certain documentation and paperwork requirements in order to improve children's mental health and safety. Reported by Committee on Ways & Means

MAJORITY recommendation: Do pass as amended. Signed by Senators Braun, Chair; Brown, Vice Chair; Honeyford, Vice Chair, Capital Budget ; Ranker, Ranking Minority Member; Rolfes, Assistant Ranking Minority Member, Operating Budget; Frockt, Assistant Ranking Minority Member, Capital Budget; Bailey; Becker; Billig; Carlyle; Conway; Darneille; Fain; Hasegawa; Keiser; Miloscia; Padden; Pedersen; Rivers; Schoesler; Warnick and Zeiger.

MAJORITY recommendation: Do pass as amended. Signed by Senators Braun, Chair; Brown, Vice Chair; Honeyford, Vice Chair, Capital Budget ; Ranker, Ranking Minority Member; Rolfes, Assistant Ranking Minority Member, Operating Budget; Frockt, Assistant Ranking Minority Member, Capital Budget; Bailey; Becker; Billig; Carlyle; Conway; Darneille; Fain; Hasegawa; Keiser; Miloscia; Padden; Pedersen; Rivers; Schoesler; Warnick and Zeiger.

Referred to Committee on Rules for second reading.

Referred to Committee on Rules for second reading.

March 29, 2017

EHB 1742 Prime Sponsor, Representative Stambaugh: Modifying the motor vehicle transporter's license to accommodate automotive repair facilities. Reported by Committee on Transportation

SHB 2058 Prime Sponsor, Committee on Transportation: Creating procedures for the redemption of certain vehicles that are towed from accident scenes by registered tow truck companies when the vehicle owner is admitted as a patient in a hospital due to the accident. Reported by Committee on Transportation

MAJORITY recommendation: Do pass. Signed by Senators King, Chair; Sheldon, Vice Chair; Hobbs, Ranking Minority Member; Liias; Cleveland; Ericksen; Fortunato; Hawkins; O'Ban; Saldaña; Takko; Van De Wege; Walsh and Wilson.

MAJORITY recommendation: Do pass. Signed by Senators King, Chair; Sheldon, Vice Chair; Hobbs, Ranking Minority Member; Liias; Cleveland; Ericksen; Fortunato; Hawkins; O'Ban; Saldaña; Takko; Van De Wege; Walsh and Wilson.

Referred to Committee on Rules for second reading.

Referred to Committee on Rules for second reading.

March 29, 2017

March 29, 2017

ESHB 1796 Prime Sponsor, Committee on Appropriations: Providing reasonable accommodations in the workplace for pregnant women. Reported by Committee on Ways & Means

SGA 9190 TRACY GUERIN, appointed on September 1, 2016, for the term ending at the pleasure of the Governor, as Director of the Department of Retirement Systems - Agency Head. Reported by Committee on Ways & Means

MAJORITY recommendation: Do pass as amended by Committee on Commerce, Labor & Sports. Signed by Senators Braun, Chair; Brown, Vice Chair; Honeyford, Vice Chair, Capital Budget ; Ranker, Ranking Minority Member; Rolfes, Assistant Ranking Minority Member, Operating Budget; Frockt, Assistant Ranking Minority Member, Capital Budget; Bailey; Becker; Billig; Carlyle; Conway; Darneille; Fain; Hasegawa; Keiser; Miloscia; Padden; Pedersen; Rivers; Schoesler; Warnick and Zeiger.

MAJORITY recommendation: That said appointment be confirmed. Signed by Senators Braun, Chair; Brown, Vice Chair; Rossi, Vice Chair; Honeyford, Vice Chair, Capital Budget ; Ranker, Ranking Minority Member; Frockt, Assistant Ranking Minority Member, Capital Budget; Bailey; Becker; Billig; Carlyle; Conway; Darneille; Fain; Hasegawa; Keiser; Miloscia; Padden; Warnick and Zeiger.

Referred to Committee on Rules for second reading.

MOTION

On motion of Senator Fain, the recommendations of the Standing Committees were accepted and all measures listed on the Standing Committee report were referred to the committees as designated.

MOTION

On motion of Senator Fain, the Senate advanced to the fifth order of business.

INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING

SB 5917 by Senators Mullet, Palumbo, Wilson, Frockt, Rolfes and Liias

AN ACT Relating to a systemwide credit policy regarding international baccalaureate exams; adding a new section to chapter 28B.10 RCW; and creating a new section.

Referred to Committee on Higher Education.

MOTION

On motion of Senator Fain, the measure listed on the Introduction and First Reading report was referred to the committee as designated.

MOTION

On motion of Senator Fain, the Senate advanced to the eighth order of business.

MOTION

On motion of Senator Fain, Senate Rule 20 was suspended for the remainder of the day to allow consideration of additional floor resolutions.

EDITOR'S NOTE: Senate Rule 20 limits consideration of floor resolutions not essential to the operation of the Senate to one per day during regular daily sessions.

MOTION

Senator Keiser moved adoption of the following resolution:

SENATE RESOLUTION  
8639

By Senators Keiser, Fain, Liias, and Wellman

WHEREAS, Auburn dentist Amy Cook has succeeded in creating a thriving dental practice, and has kept an open door to local Medicaid patients despite the low reimbursement rates for her professional dental services; and

WHEREAS, Nearly two hundred Washington dentists provided care at no cost to almost two thousand five hundred patients during the 2016 four-day, free, volunteer-run health care clinic in Seattle; and

WHEREAS, Dependable access to good dental care is an important part of maintaining good overall health status, and prevention of dental disease is also a way to prevent complications for pregnant women and diabetic patients; and

WHEREAS, The Washington State Dental Association has adopted a proposal offered by dentist Amy Cook called the "Take 5 Program" to encourage all Washington dentists to accept at least five patients with Medicaid Apple Health dental coverage; and

WHEREAS, Washington dentists participating in the Access to Baby and Child Dentistry (ABCD) program, established in 1999, have more than doubled the percentage of Medicaid Apple Health eligible babies, toddlers, and preschoolers who receive preventive dental care; and

WHEREAS, The Washington State Dental Association has also adopted a resolution supporting continued eligibility in the ABCD program for patients with developmental disabilities who may be unable to cooperate in a traditional, adult dental setting;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Washington State Senate recognize the valuable role played by the hundreds of Washington dentists who promote access to dental care by volunteering their services to the uninsured, and by treating patients with special needs and those with Medicaid dental insurance; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a copy of this resolution be immediately transmitted by the Secretary of the Senate to the Governor's Interagency Council on Health Disparities.

Senators Keiser, Fain and Angel spoke in favor of adoption of the resolution.

The President Pro Tempore declared the question before the Senate to be the adoption of Senate Resolution No. 8639.

The motion by Senator Keiser carried and the resolution was adopted by voice vote.

INTRODUCTION OF SPECIAL GUESTS

The President welcomed and introduced several volunteer dentists who were seated in the gallery: Dr. Amy Cook; Dr. John Gibbons; Mr. Bracken Kilpack; Dr. Cindy Polley; and Dr. Mark Walker.

MOTION

On motion of Senator Fain, the Senate reverted to the seventh order of business.

MOTION

On motion of Senator Saldaña, Senators Billig, Nelson and Van De Wege were excused.

THIRD READING  
CONFIRMATION OF GUBERNATORIAL APPOINTMENTS

MOTION

Senator Short moved that RUSSELL E. OLSEN, Gubernatorial Appointment No. 9010, be confirmed as Director of the Pollution Liability Insurance Program.

Senators Short and Hunt spoke in favor of passage of the motion.

APPOINTMENT OF RUSSELL E. OLSEN

The President Pro Tempore declared the question before the Senate to be the confirmation of RUSSELL E. OLSEN, Gubernatorial Appointment No. 9010, as Director of the Pollution Liability Insurance Program.

The Secretary called the roll on the confirmation of RUSSELL E. OLSEN, Gubernatorial Appointment No. 9010, as Director of

EIGHTY SECOND DAY, MARCH 31, 2017

2017 REGULAR SESSION

the Pollution Liability Insurance Program and the appointment was confirmed by the following vote: Yeas, 46; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 3.

Voting yea: Senators Angel, Bailey, Baumgartner, Becker, Braun, Brown, Carlyle, Chase, Cleveland, Conway, Darneille, Ericksen, Fain, Fortunato, Frockt, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Hobbs, Honeyford, Hunt, Keiser, King, Kuderer, Liias, McCoy, Miloscia, Mullet, O'Ban, Padden, Palumbo, Pearson, Pedersen, Ranker, Rivers, Rolfes, Rossi, Saldaña, Schoesler, Sheldon, Short, Takko, Walsh, Warnick, Wellman, Wilson and Zeiger

Excused: Senators Billig, Nelson and Van De Wege

RUSSELL E. OLSEN, Gubernatorial Appointment No. 9010, having received the constitutional majority was declared confirmed as a Director of the Pollution Liability Insurance Program.

MOTION

On motion of Senator Fain, the Senate reverted to the sixth order of business.

SECOND READING

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1027, by House Committee on Business & Financial Services (originally sponsored by Representatives Barkis, Vick, Stanford, Kirby and Ryu)

Addressing surplus line broker licensing.

The measure was read the second time.

MOTION

On motion of Senator Angel, the rules were suspended, Substitute House Bill No. 1027 was advanced to third reading, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Senators Angel and Mullet spoke in favor of passage of the bill.

The President Pro Tempore declared the question before the Senate to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1027.

ROLL CALL

The Secretary called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1027 and the bill passed the Senate by the following vote: Yeas, 46; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 3.

Voting yea: Senators Angel, Bailey, Baumgartner, Becker, Braun, Brown, Carlyle, Chase, Cleveland, Conway, Darneille, Ericksen, Fain, Fortunato, Frockt, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Hobbs, Honeyford, Hunt, Keiser, King, Kuderer, Liias, McCoy, Miloscia, Mullet, O'Ban, Padden, Palumbo, Pearson, Pedersen, Ranker, Rivers, Rolfes, Rossi, Saldaña, Schoesler, Sheldon, Short, Takko, Walsh, Warnick, Wellman, Wilson and Zeiger

Excused: Senators Billig, Nelson and Van De Wege

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1027, having received the constitutional majority, was declared passed. There being no objection, the title of the bill was ordered to stand as the title of the act.

SECOND READING

HOUSE BILL NO. 1150, by Representatives DeBolt and Blake

Clarifying procedures for appointment to the Chehalis board created by chapter 194, Laws of 2016.

The measure was read the second time.

MOTION

Senator Braun moved that the following committee amendment by the Committee on Energy, Environment & Telecommunications be adopted:

Strike everything after the enacting clause and insert the following:

"Sec. 812. RCW 43.21A.731 and 2016 c 194 s 2 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The Chehalis board is created consisting of seven voting members.

(2)(a) Four members of the board must be voting members who are appointed ~~((by))~~ through the governor ~~((subject to confirmation by the senate. One member must represent the Chehalis Indian tribe and one member must represent the Quinault Indian nation)).~~ The governor shall invite the Confederated Tribes of the Chehalis Reservation and the Quinault Indian Nation to each designate a voting member of the board. In addition, the governor shall appoint two members of the board, subject to confirmation by the senate. Three board members must be selected by the Chehalis basin flood authority. No member may have a direct financial ~~((or regulatory))~~ interest in the ~~((work))~~ actions of the board. The governor shall appoint one of the flood authority appointees as the chair. The voting members of the board must be appointed for terms of four years, except that ~~((two members))~~ one member appointed by the governor and one member appointed by the flood authority initially must be appointed for terms of two years, and ~~((three members))~~ one member appointed by the governor and two members appointed by the flood authority must initially be appointed for terms of three years. In making the appointments, ~~((the governor))~~ each appointing authority shall seek a board membership that collectively provides the expertise necessary to provide strong oversight for implementation of the Chehalis basin strategy, that provides extensive knowledge of local government processes and functions, and that has an understanding of issues relevant to reducing flood damages and restoring aquatic species.

(b) In addition to the seven voting members of the board, the following five state officials must serve as ex officio nonvoting members of the board: The director of the department of fish and wildlife, the executive director of the Washington state conservation commission, the secretary of the department of transportation, the director of the department of ecology, and the commissioner of public lands. The state officials serving in an ex officio capacity may designate a representative of their respective agencies to serve on the board in their behalf. These designations must be made in writing and in such a manner as is specified by the board.

(3) Staff support to the board must be provided by the department. For administrative purposes, the board is located within the department.

(4) Members of the board who do not represent state agencies must be compensated as provided by RCW 43.03.250. Members of the board shall be reimbursed for travel expenses as provided by RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060.

(5) The board is responsible for oversight of a long-term strategy resulting from the department's programmatic environmental impact statement for the Chehalis river basin to reduce flood damages and restore aquatic species habitat.

(6) The board is responsible for overseeing the implementation of the strategy and developing biennial and supplemental budget recommendations to the governor.

**NEW SECTION. Sec. 813.** This act is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, or safety, or support of the state government and its existing public institutions, and takes effect immediately."

On page 1, line 2 of the title, after "Laws of 2016;" strike the remainder of the title and insert "amending RCW 43.21A.731; and declaring an emergency."

The President Pro Tempore declared the question before the Senate to be the adoption of the committee amendment by the Committee on Energy, Environment & Telecommunications to House Bill No. 1150.

The motion by Senator Braun carried and the committee amendment was adopted by voice vote.

#### MOTION

On motion of Senator Braun, the rules were suspended, House Bill No. 1150 as amended by the Senate was advanced to third reading, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Senators Braun and Carlyle spoke in favor of passage of the bill.

The President Pro Tempore declared the question before the Senate to be the final passage of House Bill No. 1150 as amended by the Senate.

#### ROLL CALL

The Secretary called the roll on the final passage of House Bill No. 1150 as amended by the Senate and the bill passed the Senate by the following vote: Yeas, 46; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 3.

Voting yea: Senators Angel, Bailey, Baumgartner, Becker, Braun, Brown, Carlyle, Chase, Cleveland, Conway, Darneille, Ericksen, Fain, Fortunato, Frockt, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Hobbs, Honeyford, Hunt, Keiser, King, Kuderer, Liias, McCoy, Miloscia, Mullet, O'Ban, Padden, Palumbo, Pearson, Pedersen, Ranker, Rivers, Rolfes, Rossi, Saldaña, Schoesler, Sheldon, Short, Takko, Walsh, Warnick, Wellman, Wilson and Zeiger

Excused: Senators Billig, Nelson and Van De Wege

HOUSE BILL NO. 1150, as amended by the Senate, having received the constitutional majority, was declared passed. There being no objection, the title of the bill was ordered to stand as the title of the act.

#### SECOND READING

HOUSE BILL NO. 1734, by Representatives Lovick, Hargrove, Stonier, Muri, Ortiz-Self and Pollet

Authorizing reimbursement for substitute teachers participating in activities of the Washington state professional educator standards board to carry out its powers and duties.

The measure was read the second time.

#### MOTION

On motion of Senator Zeiger, the rules were suspended, House Bill No. 1734 was advanced to third reading, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Senators Zeiger and Rolfes spoke in favor of passage of the bill.

The President Pro Tempore declared the question before the Senate to be the final passage of House Bill No. 1734.

#### ROLL CALL

The Secretary called the roll on the final passage of House Bill No. 1734 and the bill passed the Senate by the following vote: Yeas, 46; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 3.

Voting yea: Senators Angel, Bailey, Baumgartner, Becker, Braun, Brown, Carlyle, Chase, Cleveland, Conway, Darneille, Ericksen, Fain, Fortunato, Frockt, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Hobbs, Honeyford, Hunt, Keiser, King, Kuderer, Liias, McCoy, Miloscia, Mullet, O'Ban, Padden, Palumbo, Pearson, Pedersen, Ranker, Rivers, Rolfes, Rossi, Saldaña, Schoesler, Sheldon, Short, Takko, Walsh, Warnick, Wellman, Wilson and Zeiger

Excused: Senators Billig, Nelson and Van De Wege

HOUSE BILL NO. 1734, having received the constitutional majority, was declared passed. There being no objection, the title of the bill was ordered to stand as the title of the act.

#### SECOND READING

HOUSE BILL NO. 1906, by Representatives Orcutt, Blake, McDonald, Pike and Doglio

Allowing the expansion of counties qualifying for the farm internship program, including certain southwest Washington counties.

The measure was read the second time.

#### MOTION

Senator Baumgartner moved that the following committee amendment by the Committee on Commerce, Labor & Sports be adopted:

On page 1, line 16, after "Thurston," insert "Walla Walla,"

Senators Baumgartner, Conway, Walsh and Ranker spoke in favor of adoption of the committee amendment.

The President Pro Tempore declared the question before the Senate to be the adoption of the committee amendment by the Committee on Commerce, Labor & Sports to House Bill No. 1906.

The motion by Senator Baumgartner carried and the committee amendment was adopted by voice vote.

#### MOTION

On motion of Senator Baumgartner, the rules were suspended, House Bill No. 1906 as amended by the Senate was advanced to third reading, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Senators Baumgartner, Keiser, Becker, Ranker and Angel spoke in favor of passage of the bill.

EIGHTY SECOND DAY, MARCH 31, 2017

2017 REGULAR SESSION

The President Pro Tempore declared the question before the Senate to be the final passage of House Bill No. 1906 as amended by the Senate.

ROLL CALL

The Secretary called the roll on the final passage of House Bill No. 1906 as amended by the Senate and the bill passed the Senate by the following vote: Yeas, 46; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 3.

Voting yea: Senators Angel, Bailey, Baumgartner, Becker, Braun, Brown, Carlyle, Chase, Cleveland, Conway, Darneille, Ericksen, Fain, Fortunato, Frockt, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Hobbs, Honeyford, Hunt, Keiser, King, Kuderer, Lias, McCoy, Miloscia, Mullet, O'Ban, Padden, Palumbo, Pearson, Pedersen, Ranker, Rivers, Rolfes, Rossi, Saldaña, Schoesler, Sheldon, Short, Takko, Walsh, Warnick, Wellman, Wilson and Zeiger

Excused: Senators Billig, Nelson and Van De Wege

HOUSE BILL NO. 1906, as amended by the Senate, having received the constitutional majority, was declared passed. There being no objection, the title of the bill was ordered to stand as the title of the act.

SECOND READING

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1257, by House Committee on Agriculture & Natural Resources (originally sponsored by Representatives Kretz, Blake, Taylor, Fitzgibbon and Buys)

Concerning the release of wild beavers.

The measure was read the second time.

MOTION

On motion of Senator Pearson, the rules were suspended, Substitute House Bill No. 1257 was advanced to third reading, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Senator Pearson spoke in favor of passage of the bill.

The President Pro Tempore declared the question before the Senate to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1257.

ROLL CALL

The Secretary called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1257 and the bill passed the Senate by the following vote: Yeas, 45; Nays, 1; Absent, 0; Excused, 3.

Voting yea: Senators Angel, Bailey, Becker, Braun, Brown, Carlyle, Chase, Cleveland, Conway, Darneille, Ericksen, Fain, Fortunato, Frockt, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Hobbs, Honeyford, Hunt, Keiser, King, Kuderer, Lias, McCoy, Miloscia, Mullet, O'Ban, Padden, Palumbo, Pearson, Pedersen, Ranker, Rivers, Rolfes, Rossi, Saldaña, Schoesler, Sheldon, Short, Takko, Walsh, Warnick, Wellman, Wilson and Zeiger

Voting nay: Senator Baumgartner

Excused: Senators Billig, Nelson and Van De Wege

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1257, having received the constitutional majority, was declared passed. There being no objection, the title of the bill was ordered to stand as the title of the act.

SECOND READING

HOUSE BILL NO. 1615, by Representatives Kloba, Clibborn, Rodne, Doglio, Stanford and Jinkins

Concerning relocation assistance for persons displaced by agency property acquisitions.

The measure was read the second time.

MOTION

On motion of Senator King, the rules were suspended, House Bill No. 1615 was advanced to third reading, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Senator King spoke in favor of passage of the bill.

The President Pro Tempore declared the question before the Senate to be the final passage of House Bill No. 1615.

ROLL CALL

The Secretary called the roll on the final passage of House Bill No. 1615 and the bill passed the Senate by the following vote: Yeas, 46; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 3.

Voting yea: Senators Angel, Bailey, Baumgartner, Becker, Braun, Brown, Carlyle, Chase, Cleveland, Conway, Darneille, Ericksen, Fain, Fortunato, Frockt, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Hobbs, Honeyford, Hunt, Keiser, King, Kuderer, Lias, McCoy, Miloscia, Mullet, O'Ban, Padden, Palumbo, Pearson, Pedersen, Ranker, Rivers, Rolfes, Rossi, Saldaña, Schoesler, Sheldon, Short, Takko, Walsh, Warnick, Wellman, Wilson and Zeiger

Excused: Senators Billig, Nelson and Van De Wege

HOUSE BILL NO. 1615, having received the constitutional majority, was declared passed. There being no objection, the title of the bill was ordered to stand as the title of the act.

Senator Honeyford, Vice President Pro Tempore, assumed the chair.

SECOND READING

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1199, by House Committee on Judiciary (originally sponsored by Representatives Irwin, Jinkins, Goodman, Rodne, Hayes, Muri, Frame, Stokesbary and Stambaugh)

Allowing youth courts to have jurisdiction over transit infractions.

The measure was read the second time.

MOTION

On motion of Senator O'Ban, the rules were suspended, Substitute House Bill No. 1199 was advanced to third reading, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Senators O'Ban and Darneille spoke in favor of passage of the bill.

The Vice President Pro Tempore declared the question before the Senate to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1199.

ROLL CALL

The Secretary called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1199 and the bill passed the Senate by the following vote: Yeas, 46; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 3.

Voting yea: Senators Angel, Bailey, Baumgartner, Becker, Braun, Brown, Carlyle, Chase, Cleveland, Conway, Darneille, Ericksen, Fain, Fortunato, Frockt, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Hobbs, Honeyford, Hunt, Keiser, King, Kuderer, Liias, McCoy, Miloscia, Mullet, O'Ban, Padden, Palumbo, Pearson, Pedersen, Ranker, Rivers, Rolfes, Rossi, Saldaña, Schoesler, Sheldon, Short, Takko, Walsh, Warnick, Wellman, Wilson and Zeiger

Excused: Senators Billig, Nelson and Van De Wege

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1199, having received the constitutional majority, was declared passed. There being no objection, the title of the bill was ordered to stand as the title of the act.

#### SECOND READING

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1176, by House Committee on Commerce & Gaming (originally sponsored by Representative Muri)

Concerning the alcoholic beverage mead.

The measure was read the second time.

#### MOTION

On motion of Senator Baumgartner, the rules were suspended, Substitute House Bill No. 1176 was advanced to third reading, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Senators Baumgartner and Keiser spoke in favor of passage of the bill.

The Vice President Pro Tempore declared the question before the Senate to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1176.

#### ROLL CALL

The Secretary called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1176 and the bill passed the Senate by the following vote: Yeas, 43; Nays, 3; Absent, 0; Excused, 3.

Voting yea: Senators Angel, Bailey, Baumgartner, Becker, Braun, Brown, Carlyle, Chase, Cleveland, Conway, Ericksen, Fain, Fortunato, Frockt, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Hobbs, Honeyford, Hunt, Keiser, King, Kuderer, McCoy, Miloscia, Mullet, O'Ban, Padden, Palumbo, Pedersen, Ranker, Rivers, Rolfes, Rossi, Saldaña, Schoesler, Sheldon, Short, Takko, Walsh, Warnick, Wellman, Wilson and Zeiger

Voting nay: Senators Darneille, Liias and Pearson

Excused: Senators Billig, Nelson and Van De Wege

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1176, having received the constitutional majority, was declared passed. There being no objection, the title of the bill was ordered to stand as the title of the act.

#### SECOND READING

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1515, by House Committee on Transportation (originally sponsored by Representatives Graves, Riccelli and Kraft)

Clarifying the appropriate format for signed written authorizations for special parking privileges.

The measure was read the second time.

#### MOTION

On motion of Senator Hunt, the rules were suspended, Substitute House Bill No. 1515 was advanced to third reading, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Senator Hunt spoke in favor of passage of the bill.

The Vice President Pro Tempore declared the question before the Senate to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1515.

#### ROLL CALL

The Secretary called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1515 and the bill passed the Senate by the following vote: Yeas, 46; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 3.

Voting yea: Senators Angel, Bailey, Baumgartner, Becker, Braun, Brown, Carlyle, Chase, Cleveland, Conway, Darneille, Ericksen, Fain, Fortunato, Frockt, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Hobbs, Honeyford, Hunt, Keiser, King, Kuderer, Liias, McCoy, Miloscia, Mullet, O'Ban, Padden, Palumbo, Pearson, Pedersen, Ranker, Rivers, Rolfes, Rossi, Saldaña, Schoesler, Sheldon, Short, Takko, Walsh, Warnick, Wellman, Wilson and Zeiger

Excused: Senators Billig, Nelson and Van De Wege

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1515, having received the constitutional majority, was declared passed. There being no objection, the title of the bill was ordered to stand as the title of the act.

Senator Short, acting President Pro Tempore, assumed the chair.

#### SECOND READING

HOUSE BILL NO. 1400, by Representatives Dent, Gregerson, Hargrove, McBride, Klippert, Tarleton, Dye, Blake, Peterson, Sells, Griffey, Holy, Harris, McCabe, Buys, Koster, Haler, Wilcox, Graves, Jenkin, Van Werven, Stokesbary, Pike, Condotta, Rodne, MacEwen, Irwin, Steele, Nealey, Volz, McDonald, McCaslin, Chandler, Stambaugh, Barkis, Kraft, Manweller, Muri, J. Walsh, Pettigrew, Bergquist and Kagi

Creating Washington state aviation special license plates.

The measure was read the second time.

#### MOTION

On motion of Senator Hawkins, the rules were suspended, House Bill No. 1400 was advanced to third reading, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Senators Hawkins and Bailey spoke in favor of passage of the bill.

The acting President Pro Tempore (Senator Short presiding) declared the question before the Senate to be the final passage of House Bill No. 1400.

EIGHTY SECOND DAY, MARCH 31, 2017

2017 REGULAR SESSION

## ROLL CALL

The Secretary called the roll on the final passage of House Bill No. 1400 and the bill passed the Senate by the following vote: Yeas, 46; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 3.

Voting yea: Senators Angel, Bailey, Baumgartner, Becker, Braun, Brown, Carlyle, Chase, Cleveland, Conway, Darneille, Ericksen, Fain, Fortunato, Frockt, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Hobbs, Honeyford, Hunt, Keiser, King, Kuderer, Lias, McCoy, Miloscia, Mullet, O'Ban, Padden, Palumbo, Pearson, Pedersen, Ranker, Rivers, Rolfes, Rossi, Saldaña, Schoesler, Sheldon, Short, Takko, Walsh, Warnick, Wellman, Wilson and Zeiger

Excused: Senators Billig, Nelson and Van De Wege

HOUSE BILL NO. 1400, having received the constitutional majority, was declared passed. There being no objection, the title of the bill was ordered to stand as the title of the act.

## SECOND READING

HOUSE BILL NO. 1616, by Representatives McBride, Johnson, Stanford, Pollet and Jinkins

Clarifying the type of land eligible for purchase under the affordable housing land acquisition revolving loan fund program.

The measure was read the second time.

## MOTION

On motion of Senator O'Ban, the rules were suspended, House Bill No. 1616 was advanced to third reading, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Senator O'Ban spoke in favor of passage of the bill.

The acting President Pro Tempore (Senator Short presiding) declared the question before the Senate to be the final passage of House Bill No. 1616.

## ROLL CALL

The Secretary called the roll on the final passage of House Bill No. 1616 and the bill passed the Senate by the following vote: Yeas, 45; Nays, 1; Absent, 0; Excused, 3.

Voting yea: Senators Angel, Bailey, Baumgartner, Becker, Braun, Brown, Carlyle, Chase, Cleveland, Conway, Darneille, Ericksen, Fain, Fortunato, Frockt, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Hobbs, Honeyford, Hunt, Keiser, King, Kuderer, Lias, McCoy, Miloscia, Mullet, O'Ban, Palumbo, Pearson, Pedersen, Ranker, Rivers, Rolfes, Rossi, Saldaña, Schoesler, Sheldon, Short, Takko, Walsh, Warnick, Wellman, Wilson and Zeiger

Voting nay: Senator Padden

Excused: Senators Billig, Nelson and Van De Wege

HOUSE BILL NO. 1616, having received the constitutional majority, was declared passed. There being no objection, the title of the bill was ordered to stand as the title of the act.

Senator Keiser, acting President Pro Tempore, assumed the chair.

## SECOND READING

ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1431, by House Committee on Health Care & Wellness (originally sponsored by Representatives Slatter, Cody and Jinkins)

Increasing the number of members on the board of osteopathic medicine and surgery.

The measure was read the second time.

## MOTION

On motion of Senator Rivers, the rules were suspended, Engrossed Substitute House Bill No. 1431 was advanced to third reading, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Senators Rivers and Cleveland spoke in favor of passage of the bill.

The acting President Pro Tempore (Senator Keiser presiding) declared the question before the Senate to be the final passage of Engrossed Substitute House Bill No. 1431.

## ROLL CALL

The Secretary called the roll on the final passage of Engrossed Substitute House Bill No. 1431 and the bill passed the Senate by the following vote: Yeas, 46; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 3.

Voting yea: Senators Angel, Bailey, Baumgartner, Becker, Braun, Brown, Carlyle, Chase, Cleveland, Conway, Darneille, Ericksen, Fain, Fortunato, Frockt, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Hobbs, Honeyford, Hunt, Keiser, King, Kuderer, Lias, McCoy, Miloscia, Mullet, O'Ban, Padden, Palumbo, Pearson, Pedersen, Ranker, Rivers, Rolfes, Rossi, Saldaña, Schoesler, Sheldon, Short, Takko, Walsh, Warnick, Wellman, Wilson and Zeiger

Excused: Senators Billig, Nelson and Van De Wege

ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1431, having received the constitutional majority, was declared passed. There being no objection, the title of the bill was ordered to stand as the title of the act.

## SECOND READING

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1235, by House Committee on Education (originally sponsored by Representatives Riccelli, Harris, Stonier, Bergquist, Caldier, Robinson, Nealey, Stokesbary, Jinkins, McBride, Goodman, Ryu, Frame, Gregerson, Dolan and Ormsby)

Assessing physical education practices in public schools.

The measure was read the second time.

## MOTION

On motion of Senator Zeiger, the rules were suspended, Substitute House Bill No. 1235 was advanced to third reading, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Senator Zeiger spoke in favor of passage of the bill.

The acting President Pro Tempore (Senator Keiser presiding) declared the question before the Senate to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1235.

## ROLL CALL

The Secretary called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1235 and the bill passed the Senate by the following vote: Yeas, 44; Nays, 2; Absent, 0; Excused, 3.

Voting yea: Senators Angel, Bailey, Baumgartner, Becker, Braun, Brown, Carlyle, Chase, Cleveland, Conway, Darneille, Ericksen, Fain, Fortunato, Frockt, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Hobbs, Honeyford, Hunt, Keiser, King, Kuderer, Lias, McCoy, Miloscia, Mullet, O'Ban, Palumbo, Pearson, Pedersen, Ranker, Rivers, Rolfes, Rossi, Saldaña, Schoesler, Sheldon, Takko, Walsh, Warnick, Wellman, Wilson and Zeiger

Voting nay: Senators Padden and Short

Excused: Senators Billig, Nelson and Van De Wege

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1235, having received the constitutional majority, was declared passed. There being no objection, the title of the bill was ordered to stand as the title of the act.

Senator Wilson, acting President Pro Tempore, assumed the chair.

## SECOND READING

ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1648, by Representatives Stonier, Frame, Peterson, Harris, Vick, Wylie and Pike

Concerning county treasurer administrative efficiencies.

The measure was read the second time.

## MOTION

Senator Short moved that the following committee striking amendment by the Committee on Local Government be adopted:

Strike everything after the enacting clause and insert the following:

"**Sec. 814.** RCW 84.56.020 and 2014 c 13 s 1 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The county treasurer must be the receiver and collector of all taxes extended upon the tax rolls of the county, whether levied for state, county, school, bridge, road, municipal or other purposes, and also of all fines, forfeitures or penalties received by any person or officer for the use of his or her county. No treasurer may accept tax payments or issue receipts for the same until the treasurer has completed the tax roll for the current year's collection and provided notification of the completion of the roll. Notification may be accomplished electronically, by posting a notice in the office, or through other written communication as determined by the treasurer. All ~~((taxes upon))~~ real and personal property taxes and assessments made payable by the provisions of this title are due and payable to the county treasurer on or before the thirtieth day of April and, except as provided in this section, ~~((shall be))~~ are delinquent after that date.

(2) Each tax statement must include a notice that checks for payment of taxes may be made payable to "Treasurer of . . . . . County" or other appropriate office, but tax statements may not include any suggestion that checks may be made payable to the name of the individual holding the office of treasurer nor any other individual.

(3) When the total amount of tax or special assessments on personal property or on any lot, block or tract of real property payable by one person is fifty dollars or more, and if one-half of such tax ~~((be))~~ is paid on or before the thirtieth day of April, the remainder of such tax is due and payable on or before the

following thirty-first day of October ~~((following and shall be))~~ and is delinquent after that date.

(4) When the total amount of tax or special assessments on any lot, block or tract of real property or on any mobile home payable by one person is fifty dollars or more, and if one-half of such tax ~~((be))~~ is paid after the thirtieth day of April but before the thirty-first day of October, together with the applicable interest and penalty on the full amount of tax payable for that year, the remainder of such tax is due and payable on or before the following thirty-first day of October ~~((following))~~ and is delinquent after that date.

(5) Except as provided in (c) of this subsection, delinquent taxes under this section are subject to interest at the rate of twelve percent per annum computed on a monthly basis on the amount of tax delinquent from the date of delinquency until paid. Interest must be calculated at the rate in effect at the time of the tax payment ~~((of the tax))~~, regardless of when the taxes were first delinquent. In addition, delinquent taxes under this section are subject to penalties as follows:

(a) A penalty of three percent of the amount of tax delinquent is assessed on the tax delinquent on June 1st of the year in which the tax is due.

(b) An additional penalty of eight percent is assessed on the ~~((amount of tax))~~ delinquent tax amount on December 1st of the year in which the tax is due.

(c) If a taxpayer is successfully participating in a payment agreement under subsection (12)(b) of this section or a partial payment ~~((agreement under subsection (11)(b) of this section))~~ program pursuant to subsection (13) of this section, the county treasurer may not assess additional penalties on delinquent taxes that are included within the payment agreement. Interest and penalties that have been assessed prior to the payment agreement remain due and payable as provided in the payment agreement.

(6)(a) When real property taxes become delinquent and prior to the filing of the certificate of delinquency, the treasurer is authorized to assess and collect tax foreclosure avoidance costs.

(b) For the purposes of this section, "tax foreclosure avoidance costs" means those ~~((costs that can be identified specifically))~~ direct costs associated with the administration of properties subject to and prior to foreclosure. Tax foreclosure avoidance costs include:

(i) Compensation of employees for the time devoted ~~((and identified specifically))~~ to administering the avoidance of property foreclosure; and

(ii) The cost of materials, services, or equipment acquired, consumed, or expended ~~((specifically for the purpose of))~~ in administering tax foreclosure avoidance prior to the filing of a certificate of delinquency.

(c) When tax foreclosure avoidance costs are collected, ~~((the tax foreclosure avoidance costs))~~ such costs must be credited to the county treasurer service fund account, except as otherwise directed.

(d) For purposes of chapter 84.64 RCW, any taxes, interest, or penalties deemed delinquent under this section remain delinquent until such time as all taxes, interest, and penalties for the tax year in which the taxes were first due and payable have been paid in full.

(7) Subsection (5) of this section notwithstanding, no interest or penalties may be assessed during any period of armed conflict ~~((on))~~ regarding delinquent taxes imposed on the personal residences owned by active duty military personnel who are participating as part of one of the branches of the military involved in the conflict and assigned to a duty station outside the territorial boundaries of the United States.

(8) During a state of emergency declared under RCW 43.06.010(12), the county treasurer, on his or her own motion or

EIGHTY SECOND DAY, MARCH 31, 2017

2017 REGULAR SESSION

at the request of any taxpayer affected by the emergency, may grant extensions of the due date of any taxes payable under this section as the treasurer deems proper.

(9) All collections of interest on delinquent taxes must be credited to the county current expense fund.

(10) For purposes of this chapter, "interest" means both interest and penalties.

~~((10) All collections of interest on delinquent taxes must be credited to the county current expense fund; but))~~

(11) The direct cost of foreclosure and sale of real property, and the direct fees and costs of distraint and sale of personal property, for delinquent taxes, must, when collected, be credited to the operation and maintenance fund of the county treasurer prosecuting the foreclosure or distraint or sale; and must be used by the county treasurer as a revolving fund to defray the cost of further foreclosure, distraint, and sale ~~((for))~~ because of delinquent taxes without regard to budget limitations and not subject to indirect costs of other charges.

~~((11))~~ (12)(a) For purposes of this chapter, and in accordance with this section and RCW 36.29.190, the treasurer may collect taxes, assessments, fees, rates, interest, and charges by electronic ~~((bill presentment))~~ billing and payment. Electronic ~~((bill presentment))~~ billing and payment may be ~~((utilized))~~ used as an option by the taxpayer, but the treasurer may not require the use of electronic ~~((bill presentment))~~ billing and payment. Electronic bill presentment and payment may be on a monthly or other periodic basis as the treasurer deems proper for delinquent tax year payments only or for prepayments of current tax. All prepayments must be paid in full by the due date specified in (c) of this subsection. Payments on past due taxes must include collection of the oldest delinquent year, which includes interest and taxes within a twelve-month period, prior to filing a certificate of delinquency under chapter 84.64 RCW or distraint pursuant to RCW 84.56.070.

(b) The treasurer ~~((must))~~ may provide, by electronic means or otherwise, a payment agreement that provides for payment of current year taxes, inclusive of prepayment collection charges. The treasurer may provide, by electronic means or otherwise, a payment agreement for payment of past due delinquencies, which must also require current year taxes to be paid timely. The payment agreement must be signed by the taxpayer and treasurer prior to the sending of an electronic or alternative bill, which includes a payment plan for current year taxes. The treasurer may accept partial payment of current and delinquent taxes including interest and penalties using electronic bill presentment and payments.

(c) All taxes upon real and personal property made payable by the provisions of this title are due and payable to the treasurer on or before the thirtieth day of April and are delinquent after that date. The remainder of the tax is due and payable on or before the following thirty-first ~~((day))~~ of October ~~((following))~~ and is delinquent after that date. All other assessments, fees, rates, and charges are delinquent after the due date.

(d) A county treasurer may authorize payment of past due property taxes, penalties, and interest under this chapter by electronic funds transfers ~~((payments))~~ on a monthly basis. Delinquent taxes are subject to interest and penalties, as provided in subsection (5) of this section.

(e) The treasurer must pay any collection costs, investment earnings, or both on past due payments or prepayments to the credit of a county treasurer service fund account to be created and used only for the payment of expenses incurred by the treasurer, without limitation, in administering the system for collecting prepayments.

~~((12))~~ (13) In addition to the payment program in subsection (12)(b) of this section, the treasurer may accept partial payment of current and delinquent taxes including interest and penalties by any means authorized.

(14) For purposes of this section unless the context clearly requires otherwise, the following definitions apply:

(a) "Electronic ~~((bill presentment))~~ billing and payment" means statements, invoices, or bills that are created, delivered, and paid using the internet. The term includes an automatic electronic payment from a person's checking account, debit account, or credit card.

(b) "Internet" has the same meaning as provided in RCW 19.270.010.

**Sec. 815.** RCW 84.56.050 and 1991 c 245 s 17 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) On ~~((receiving the tax rolls the treasurer shall post))~~ receipt of the certification of the tax rolls from the county assessor, the county treasurer must transfer all real and personal property taxes from the rolls to the treasurer's tax roll, and ~~((shall))~~ must carry forward to the current tax rolls a memorandum of all delinquent taxes on each and every description of property, ~~((and enter the same on the property upon which the taxes are delinquent showing the amounts for each year. The treasurer shall notify each taxpayer in the county, at the expense of the county, of the amount of the real and personal property, and the current and delinquent amount of tax due on the same; and the treasurer shall have printed on the notice the name of each tax and the levy made on the same. The county treasurer shall be the sole collector of all delinquent taxes and all other taxes due and collectible on the tax rolls of the county; PROVIDED, That the term "taxpayer" as used in this section shall))~~ entering which taxes are delinquent and the amounts for each year. Except as provided otherwise in this section, the treasurer must provide a printed notice or electronically publish, at the expense of the county, information for each taxpayer, regarding the amount of real and personal property, and the name of each tax and levy made on the same. The county treasurer must be the sole collector of all taxes, current or delinquent.

(2) For the purposes of this section, "taxpayer" means any person charged, or whose property is charged, with property tax~~((; and))~~.

(3) The person to be notified ~~((is that))~~ under this section is the person whose name appears on the tax roll herein mentioned~~((: PROVIDED, FURTHER, That)). However, if:~~

(a) No name so appears the person to be notified is ~~((that))~~ the person shown by the treasurer's tax rolls or duplicate tax receipts of any preceding year as the payer of the tax last paid on the property ~~((in question)); or~~

(b) The real property taxes are paid by a bank, as defined in RCW 62A.1-201, the name of each tax and levy in the property tax information on the county treasurer's web site satisfies the notice requirements of this section.

**Sec. 816.** RCW 82.45.090 and 2009 c 350 s 8 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) Except for a sale of a beneficial interest in real property where no instrument evidencing the sale is recorded in the official real property records of the county in which the property is located, the tax imposed by this chapter ~~((shall))~~ must be paid to and collected by the treasurer of the county within which is located the real property ~~((which))~~ that was sold. In collecting the tax the county treasurer ~~((shall))~~ must act as agent for the state. The county treasurer ~~((shall))~~ must cause a verification of payment evidencing satisfaction of the lien to be affixed to the instrument of sale or conveyance prior to its recording or to the real estate excise tax affidavit in the case of used mobile home

sales and used floating home sales. A receipt issued by the county treasurer for the payment of the tax imposed under this chapter ((shall be)) is evidence of the satisfaction of the lien imposed ((hereunder)) in this section and may be recorded in the manner prescribed for recording satisfactions of mortgages. No instrument of sale or conveyance evidencing a sale subject to the tax ((shall)) may be accepted by the county auditor for filing or recording until the tax ((shall have been)) is paid and the verification of payment affixed thereto; in case the tax is not due on the transfer, the instrument ((shall)) may not be so accepted until suitable notation of such fact has been made on the instrument by the treasurer. ((Any time there is a)) At the sale of a used mobile home, used manufactured home, used park model, or used floating home that has not been title eliminated, property taxes must be current in order to complete the processing of the real estate excise tax affidavit or other documents transferring title. Verification that the property taxes are current must be noted on the mobile home real estate excise tax affidavit or on a form approved by the county treasurer. For the purposes of this subsection, "mobile home," "manufactured home," and "park model" have the same meaning as provided in RCW 59.20.030.

(2) For a sale of a beneficial interest in real property where a tax is due under this chapter and where no instrument is recorded in the official real property records of the county in which the property is located, the sale ((shall)) must be reported to the department of revenue within five days from the ((date of the)) sale date on such returns or forms and according to such procedures as the department may prescribe. Such forms or returns ((shall)) must be signed or electronically signed by both the transferor and the transferee and ((shall)) must be accompanied by payment of the tax due.

(3) Any person who intentionally makes a false statement on any return or form required to be filed with the department under this chapter is guilty of perjury under chapter 9A.72 RCW.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 817. 2014 c 13 s 3 (uncodified) is repealed."

On page 1, line 1 of the title, after "efficiencies;" strike the remainder of the title and insert "amending RCW 84.56.020, 84.56.050, and 82.45.090; and repealing 2014 c 13 s 3 (uncodified)."

The acting President Pro Tempore (Senator Wilson presiding) declared the question before the Senate to be the adoption of the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Local Government to Engrossed House Bill No. 1648.

The motion by Senator Short carried and the committee striking amendment was adopted by voice vote.

#### MOTION

On motion of Senator Short, the rules were suspended, Engrossed House Bill No. 1648 as amended by the Senate was advanced to third reading, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Senator Short spoke in favor of passage of the bill.

The acting President Pro Tempore (Senator Wilson presiding) declared the question before the Senate to be the final passage of Engrossed House Bill No. 1648 as amended by the Senate.

#### ROLL CALL

The Secretary called the roll on the final passage of Engrossed House Bill No. 1648 as amended by the Senate and the bill passed

the Senate by the following vote: Yeas, 46; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 3.

Voting yea: Senators Angel, Bailey, Baumgartner, Becker, Braun, Brown, Carlyle, Chase, Cleveland, Conway, Darneille, Ericksen, Fain, Fortunato, Frockt, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Hobbs, Honeyford, Hunt, Keiser, King, Kuderer, Lias, McCoy, Miloscia, Mullet, O'Ban, Padden, Palumbo, Pearson, Pedersen, Ranker, Rivers, Rolfes, Rossi, Saldaña, Schoesler, Sheldon, Short, Takko, Walsh, Warnick, Wellman, Wilson and Zeiger

Excused: Senators Billig, Nelson and Van De Wege

ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1648, as amended by the Senate, having received the constitutional majority, was declared passed. There being no objection, the title of the bill was ordered to stand as the title of the act.

#### SECOND READING

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1420, by House Committee on Business & Financial Services (originally sponsored by Representatives Hudgins, MacEwen and Bergquist)

Concerning theatrical wrestling.

The measure was read the second time.

#### MOTION

On motion of Senator Baumgartner, the rules were suspended, Substitute House Bill No. 1420 was advanced to third reading, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Senators Baumgartner, Saldaña, Lias, and Keiser spoke in favor of passage of the bill.

Senator Chase spoke on passage of the bill.

#### PARLIAMENTARY INQUIRY

Senator Palumbo: "I am curious if in the rules of the Senate it is permissible for me to do a 'Superfly' Snuka from the gallery onto Mr. Baumgartner? Is that allowed?"

#### REPLY BY THE PRESIDENT PRO TEMPORE

Acting President Pro Tempore (Senator Wilson presiding): "No."

Senator Hunt spoke in favor of passage of the bill.

The acting President Pro Tempore (Senator Wilson presiding) declared the question before the Senate to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1420.

#### ROLL CALL

The Secretary called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1420 and the bill passed the Senate by the following vote: Yeas, 46; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 3.

Voting yea: Senators Angel, Bailey, Baumgartner, Becker, Braun, Brown, Carlyle, Chase, Cleveland, Conway, Darneille, Ericksen, Fain, Fortunato, Frockt, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Hobbs, Honeyford, Hunt, Keiser, King, Kuderer, Lias, McCoy, Miloscia, Mullet, O'Ban, Padden, Palumbo, Pearson, Pedersen, Ranker, Rivers, Rolfes, Rossi, Saldaña, Schoesler, Sheldon, Short, Takko, Walsh, Warnick, Wellman, Wilson and Zeiger

Excused: Senators Billig, Nelson and Van De Wege

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1420, having received the constitutional majority, was declared passed. There being no objection, the title of the bill was ordered to stand as the title of the act.

Senator Frockt, acting President Pro Tempore, assumed the chair.

SECOND READING

HOUSE BILL NO. 1965, by Representatives Lovick and Irwin

Standardizing the collection and distribution of criminal records.

The measure was read the second time.

MOTION

Senator Padden moved that the following committee striking amendment by the Committee on Law & Justice be adopted:

Strike everything after the enacting clause and insert the following:

"Sec. 818. RCW 9.41.070 and 2011 c 294 s 1 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The chief of police of a municipality or the sheriff of a county shall within thirty days after the filing of an application of any person, issue a license to such person to carry a pistol concealed on his or her person within this state for five years from date of issue, for the purposes of protection or while engaged in business, sport, or while traveling. However, if the applicant does not have a valid permanent Washington driver's license or Washington state identification card or has not been a resident of the state for the previous consecutive ninety days, the issuing authority shall have up to sixty days after the filing of the application to issue a license. The issuing authority shall not refuse to accept completed applications for concealed pistol licenses during regular business hours.

The applicant's constitutional right to bear arms shall not be denied, unless:

(a) He or she is ineligible to possess a firearm under the provisions of RCW 9.41.040 or 9.41.045, or is prohibited from possessing a firearm under federal law;

(b) The applicant's concealed pistol license is in a revoked status;

(c) He or she is under twenty-one years of age;

(d) He or she is subject to a court order or injunction regarding firearms pursuant to RCW 9A.46.080, 10.14.080, 10.99.040, 10.99.045, 26.09.050, 26.09.060, 26.10.040, 26.10.115, 26.26.130, 26.50.060, 26.50.070, or 26.26.590;

(e) He or she is free on bond or personal recognizance pending trial, appeal, or sentencing for a felony offense;

(f) He or she has an outstanding warrant for his or her arrest from any court of competent jurisdiction for a felony or misdemeanor; or

(g) He or she has been ordered to forfeit a firearm under RCW 9.41.098(1)(e) within one year before filing an application to carry a pistol concealed on his or her person.

No person convicted of a felony may have his or her right to possess firearms restored or his or her privilege to carry a concealed pistol restored, unless the person has been granted relief from disabilities by the attorney general under 18 U.S.C. Sec. 925(c), or RCW 9.41.040 (3) or (4) applies.

(2)(a) The issuing authority shall conduct a check through the national instant criminal background check system, the Washington state patrol electronic database, the department of social and health services electronic database, and with other agencies or resources as appropriate, to determine whether the applicant is ineligible under RCW 9.41.040 or 9.41.045 to possess a firearm, or is prohibited from possessing a firearm under federal law, and therefore ineligible for a concealed pistol license.

(b) The issuing authority shall deny a permit to anyone who is found to be prohibited from possessing a firearm under federal or state law.

(c) This subsection applies whether the applicant is applying for a new concealed pistol license or to renew a concealed pistol license.

(3) Any person whose firearms rights have been restricted and who has been granted relief from disabilities by the attorney general under 18 U.S.C. Sec. 925(c) or who is exempt under 18 U.S.C. Sec. 921(a)(20)(A) shall have his or her right to acquire, receive, transfer, ship, transport, carry, and possess firearms in accordance with Washington state law restored except as otherwise prohibited by this chapter.

(4) The license application shall bear the full name, residential address, telephone number at the option of the applicant, date and place of birth, race, gender, description, a complete set of fingerprints, and signature of the licensee, and the licensee's driver's license number or state identification card number if used for identification in applying for the license. A signed application for a concealed pistol license shall constitute a waiver of confidentiality and written request that the department of social and health services, mental health institutions, and other health care facilities release information relevant to the applicant's eligibility for a concealed pistol license to an inquiring court or law enforcement agency.

The application for an original license shall include ~~((two))~~ a complete set~~((s))~~ of fingerprints to be forwarded to the Washington state patrol.

The license and application shall contain a warning substantially as follows:

CAUTION: Although state and local laws do not differ, federal law and state law on the possession of firearms differ. If you are prohibited by federal law from possessing a firearm, you may be prosecuted in federal court. A state license is not a defense to a federal prosecution.

The license shall contain a description of the major differences between state and federal law and an explanation of the fact that local laws and ordinances on firearms are preempted by state law and must be consistent with state law.

The application shall contain questions about the applicant's eligibility under RCW 9.41.040 and federal law to possess a pistol, the applicant's place of birth, and whether the applicant is a United States citizen. If the applicant is not a United States citizen, the applicant must provide the applicant's country of citizenship, United States issued alien number or admission number, and the basis on which the applicant claims to be exempt from federal prohibitions on firearm possession by aliens. The applicant shall not be required to produce a birth certificate or other evidence of citizenship. A person who is not a citizen of the United States shall, if applicable, meet the additional requirements of RCW 9.41.173 and produce proof of compliance with RCW 9.41.173 upon application. The license may be in triplicate or in a form to be prescribed by the department of licensing.

The original thereof shall be delivered to the licensee, the duplicate shall within seven days be sent to the director of

licensing and the triplicate shall be preserved for six years, by the authority issuing the license.

The department of licensing shall make available to law enforcement and corrections agencies, in an on-line format, all information received under this subsection.

(5) The nonrefundable fee, paid upon application, for the original five-year license shall be thirty-six dollars plus additional charges imposed by the federal bureau of investigation that are passed on to the applicant. No other state or local branch or unit of government may impose any additional charges on the applicant for the issuance of the license.

The fee shall be distributed as follows:

(a) Fifteen dollars shall be paid to the state general fund;

(b) Four dollars shall be paid to the agency taking the fingerprints of the person licensed;

(c) Fourteen dollars shall be paid to the issuing authority for the purpose of enforcing this chapter; and

(d) Three dollars to the firearms range account in the general fund.

(6) The nonrefundable fee for the renewal of such license shall be thirty-two dollars. No other branch or unit of government may impose any additional charges on the applicant for the renewal of the license.

The renewal fee shall be distributed as follows:

(a) Fifteen dollars shall be paid to the state general fund;

(b) Fourteen dollars shall be paid to the issuing authority for the purpose of enforcing this chapter; and

(c) Three dollars to the firearms range account in the general fund.

(7) The nonrefundable fee for replacement of lost or damaged licenses is ten dollars to be paid to the issuing authority.

(8) Payment shall be by cash, check, or money order at the option of the applicant. Additional methods of payment may be allowed at the option of the issuing authority.

(9) A licensee may renew a license if the licensee applies for renewal within ninety days before or after the expiration date of the license. A license so renewed shall take effect on the expiration date of the prior license. A licensee renewing after the expiration date of the license must pay a late renewal penalty of ten dollars in addition to the renewal fee specified in subsection (6) of this section. The fee shall be distributed as follows:

(a) Three dollars shall be deposited in the state wildlife account and used exclusively first for the printing and distribution of a pamphlet on the legal limits of the use of firearms, firearms safety, and the preemptive nature of state law, and subsequently the support of volunteer instructors in the basic firearms safety training program conducted by the department of fish and wildlife. The pamphlet shall be given to each applicant for a license; and

(b) Seven dollars shall be paid to the issuing authority for the purpose of enforcing this chapter.

(10) Notwithstanding the requirements of subsections (1) through (9) of this section, the chief of police of the municipality or the sheriff of the county of the applicant's residence may issue a temporary emergency license for good cause pending review under subsection (1) of this section. However, a temporary emergency license issued under this subsection shall not exempt the holder of the license from any records check requirement. Temporary emergency licenses shall be easily distinguishable from regular licenses.

(11) A political subdivision of the state shall not modify the requirements of this section or chapter, nor may a political subdivision ask the applicant to voluntarily submit any information not required by this section.

(12) A person who knowingly makes a false statement regarding citizenship or identity on an application for a concealed

pistol license is guilty of false swearing under RCW 9A.72.040. In addition to any other penalty provided for by law, the concealed pistol license of a person who knowingly makes a false statement shall be revoked, and the person shall be permanently ineligible for a concealed pistol license.

(13) A person may apply for a concealed pistol license:

(a) To the municipality or to the county in which the applicant resides if the applicant resides in a municipality;

(b) To the county in which the applicant resides if the applicant resides in an unincorporated area; or

(c) Anywhere in the state if the applicant is a nonresident.

(14) Any person who, as a member of the armed forces, including the national guard and armed forces reserves, is unable to renew his or her license under subsections (6) and (9) of this section because of the person's assignment, reassignment, or deployment for out-of-state military service may renew his or her license within ninety days after the person returns to this state from out-of-state military service, if the person provides the following to the issuing authority no later than ninety days after the person's date of discharge or assignment, reassignment, or deployment back to this state: (a) A copy of the person's original order designating the specific period of assignment, reassignment, or deployment for out-of-state military service, and (b) if appropriate, a copy of the person's discharge or amended or subsequent assignment, reassignment, or deployment order back to this state. A license so renewed under this subsection (14) shall take effect on the expiration date of the prior license. A licensee renewing after the expiration date of the license under this subsection (14) shall pay only the renewal fee specified in subsection (6) of this section and shall not be required to pay a late renewal penalty in addition to the renewal fee.

**Sec. 819.** RCW 9.41.173 and 2009 c 216 s 3 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) In order to obtain an alien firearm license, a nonimmigrant alien residing in Washington must apply to the sheriff of the county in which he or she resides.

(2) The sheriff of the county shall within sixty days after the filing of an application of a nonimmigrant alien residing in the state of Washington, issue an alien firearm license to such person to carry or possess a firearm for the purposes of hunting and sport shooting. The license shall be good for two years. The issuing authority shall not refuse to accept completed applications for alien firearm licenses during regular business hours. An application for a license may not be denied, unless the applicant's alien firearm license is in a revoked status, or the applicant:

(a) Is ineligible to possess a firearm under the provisions of RCW 9.41.040 or 9.41.045;

(b) Is subject to a court order or injunction regarding firearms pursuant to RCW 9A.46.080, 10.14.080, 10.99.040, 10.99.045, 26.09.050, 26.09.060, 26.10.040, 26.10.115, 26.26.130, 26.50.060, 26.50.070, or 26.26.590;

(c) Is free on bond or personal recognizance pending trial, appeal, or sentencing for a felony offense; or

(d) Has an outstanding warrant for his or her arrest from any court of competent jurisdiction for a felony or misdemeanor.

No license application shall be granted to a nonimmigrant alien convicted of a felony unless the person has been granted relief from disabilities by the attorney general under 18 U.S.C. Sec. 925(c), or unless RCW 9.41.040 (3) or (4) applies.

(3) The sheriff shall check with the national crime information center, the Washington state patrol electronic database, the department of social and health services electronic database, and with other agencies or resources as appropriate, to determine whether the applicant is ineligible under RCW 9.41.040 or 9.41.045 to possess a firearm.

EIGHTY SECOND DAY, MARCH 31, 2017

2017 REGULAR SESSION

(4) The license application shall bear the full name, residential address, telephone number at the option of the applicant, date and place of birth, race, gender, description, ~~((not more than two))~~ a complete set~~(s)~~ of fingerprints, and signature of the applicant, a copy of the applicant's passport and visa showing the applicant is in the country legally, and a valid Washington hunting license or documentation that the applicant is a member of a sport shooting club.

A signed application for an alien firearm license shall constitute a waiver of confidentiality and written request that the department of social and health services, mental health institutions, and other health care facilities release information relevant to the applicant's eligibility for an alien firearm license to an inquiring court or law enforcement agency.

The application for an original license shall include a complete set of fingerprints to be forwarded to the Washington state patrol.

The license and application shall contain a warning substantially as follows:

CAUTION: Although state and local laws do not differ, federal law and state law on the possession of firearms differ. If you are prohibited by federal law from possessing a firearm, you may be prosecuted in federal court. A state license is not a defense to a federal prosecution.

The license shall contain a description of the major differences between state and federal law and an explanation of the fact that local laws and ordinances on firearms are preempted by state law and must be consistent with state law. The application shall contain questions about the applicant's eligibility under RCW 9A.41.040 to possess a firearm. The nonimmigrant alien applicant shall be required to produce a passport and visa as evidence of being in the country legally.

The license may be in triplicate or in a form to be prescribed by the department of licensing. The original thereof shall be delivered to the licensee, the duplicate shall within seven days be sent to the director of licensing and the triplicate shall be preserved for six years, by the authority issuing the license.

The department of licensing shall make available to law enforcement and corrections agencies, in an online format, all information received under this section.

(5) The sheriff has the authority to collect a nonrefundable fee, paid upon application, for the two-year license. The fee shall be fifty dollars plus additional charges imposed by the Washington state patrol and the federal bureau of investigation that are passed on to the applicant. No other state or local branch or unit of government may impose any additional charges on the applicant for the issuance of the license. The fee shall be retained by the sheriff.

(6) Payment shall be by cash, check, or money order at the option of the applicant. Additional methods of payment may be allowed at the option of the sheriff.

(7) A political subdivision of the state shall not modify the requirements of this section, nor may a political subdivision ask the applicant to voluntarily submit any information not required by this section.

(8) A person who knowingly makes a false statement regarding citizenship or identity on an application for an alien firearm license is guilty of false swearing under RCW 9A.72.040. In addition to any other penalty provided for by law, the alien firearm license of a person who knowingly makes a false statement shall be revoked, and the person shall be permanently ineligible for an alien firearm license.

**Sec. 820.** RCW 9A.44.130 and 2015 c 261 s 3 are each amended to read as follows:

(1)(a) Any adult or juvenile residing whether or not the person has a fixed residence, or who is a student, is employed, or carries on a vocation in this state who has been found to have committed or has been convicted of any sex offense or kidnapping offense, or who has been found not guilty by reason of insanity under chapter 10.77 RCW of committing any sex offense or kidnapping offense, shall register with the county sheriff for the county of the person's residence, or if the person is not a resident of Washington, the county of the person's school, or place of employment or vocation, or as otherwise specified in this section. When a person required to register under this section is in custody of the state department of corrections, the state department of social and health services, a local division of youth services, or a local jail or juvenile detention facility as a result of a sex offense or kidnapping offense, the person shall also register at the time of release from custody with an official designated by the agency that has jurisdiction over the person.

(b) Any adult or juvenile who is required to register under (a) of this subsection must give notice to the county sheriff of the county with whom the person is registered within three business days:

(i) Prior to arriving at a school or institution of higher education to attend classes;

(ii) Prior to starting work at an institution of higher education; or

(iii) After any termination of enrollment or employment at a school or institution of higher education.

(2)(a) A person required to register under this section must provide the following information when registering: (i) Name and any aliases used; (ii) complete and accurate residential address or, if the person lacks a fixed residence, where he or she plans to stay; (iii) date and place of birth; (iv) place of employment; (v) crime for which convicted; (vi) date and place of conviction; (vii) social security number; (viii) photograph; and (ix) fingerprints.

(b) A person may be required to update any of the information required in this subsection in conjunction with any address verification conducted by the county sheriff or as part of any notice required by this section.

(c) A photograph or copy of an individual's fingerprints, which may include palmprints may be taken at any time to update an individual's file.

(3) Any person required to register under this section who intends to travel outside the United States must provide, by certified mail, with return receipt requested, or in person, signed written notice of the plan to travel outside the country to the county sheriff of the county with whom the person is registered at least twenty-one days prior to travel. The notice shall include the following information: (a) Name; (b) passport number and country; (c) destination; (d) itinerary details including departure and return dates; (e) means of travel; and (f) purpose of travel. If the offender subsequently cancels or postpones travel outside the United States, the offender must notify the county sheriff not later than three days after cancellation or postponement of the intended travel outside the United States or on the departure date provided in the notification, whichever is earlier. The county sheriff shall notify the United States marshals service as soon as practicable after receipt of the notification. In cases of unexpected travel due to family or work emergencies, or for offenders who travel routinely across international borders for work-related purposes, the notice must be submitted in person at least twenty-four hours prior to travel to the sheriff of the county where such offenders are registered with a written explanation of the circumstances that make compliance with this subsection (3) impracticable.

(4)(a) Offenders shall register with the county sheriff within the following deadlines:

(i) **OFFENDERS IN CUSTODY.** Sex offenders or kidnapping offenders who are in custody of the state department of corrections, the state department of social and health services, a local division of youth services, or a local jail or juvenile detention facility, must register at the time of release from custody with an official designated by the agency that has jurisdiction over the offender. The agency shall within three days forward the registration information to the county sheriff for the county of the offender's anticipated residence. The offender must also register within three business days from the time of release with the county sheriff for the county of the person's residence, or if the person is not a resident of Washington, the county of the person's school, or place of employment or vocation. The agency that has jurisdiction over the offender shall provide notice to the offender of the duty to register.

When the agency with jurisdiction intends to release an offender with a duty to register under this section, and the agency has knowledge that the offender is eligible for developmental disability services from the department of social and health services, the agency shall notify the division of developmental disabilities of the release. Notice shall occur not more than thirty days before the offender is to be released. The agency and the division shall assist the offender in meeting the initial registration requirement under this section. Failure to provide such assistance shall not constitute a defense for any violation of this section.

When a person required to register under this section is in the custody of the state department of corrections or a local corrections or probations agency and has been approved for partial confinement as defined in RCW 9.94A.030, the person must register at the time of transfer to partial confinement with the official designated by the agency that has jurisdiction over the offender. The agency shall within three days forward the registration information to the county sheriff for the county in which the offender is in partial confinement. The offender must also register within three business days from the time of the termination of partial confinement or release from confinement with the county sheriff for the county of the person's residence. The agency that has jurisdiction over the offender shall provide notice to the offender of the duty to register.

(ii) **OFFENDERS UNDER FEDERAL JURISDICTION.** Sex offenders or kidnapping offenders who are in the custody of the United States bureau of prisons or other federal or military correctional agency must register within three business days from the time of release with the county sheriff for the county of the person's residence, or if the person is not a resident of Washington, the county of the person's school, or place of employment or vocation.

(iii) **OFFENDERS WHO ARE CONVICTED BUT NOT CONFINED.** Sex offenders who are convicted of a sex offense and kidnapping offenders who are convicted for a kidnapping offense but who are not sentenced to serve a term of confinement immediately upon sentencing shall report to the county sheriff to register within three business days of being sentenced.

(iv) **OFFENDERS WHO ARE NEW RESIDENTS, TEMPORARY RESIDENTS, OR RETURNING WASHINGTON RESIDENTS.** Sex offenders and kidnapping offenders who move to Washington state from another state or a foreign country must register within three business days of establishing residence or reestablishing residence if the person is a former Washington resident. If the offender is under the jurisdiction of an agency of this state when the offender moves to Washington, the agency shall provide notice to the offender of the duty to register.

Sex offenders and kidnapping offenders who are visiting Washington state and intend to reside or be present in the state for ten days or more shall register his or her temporary address or

where he or she plans to stay with the county sheriff of each county where the offender will be staying within three business days of arrival. Registration for temporary residents shall include the information required by subsection (2)(a) of this section, except the photograph and fingerprints.

(v) **OFFENDERS FOUND NOT GUILTY BY REASON OF INSANITY.** Any adult or juvenile who has been found not guilty by reason of insanity under chapter 10.77 RCW of committing a sex offense or a kidnapping offense and who is in custody, as a result of that finding, of the state department of social and health services, must register within three business days from the time of release with the county sheriff for the county of the person's residence. The state department of social and health services shall provide notice to the adult or juvenile in its custody of the duty to register.

(vi) **OFFENDERS WHO LACK A FIXED RESIDENCE.** Any person who lacks a fixed residence and leaves the county in which he or she is registered and enters and remains within a new county for twenty-four hours is required to register with the county sheriff not more than three business days after entering the county and provide the information required in subsection (2)(a) of this section.

(vii) **OFFENDERS WHO LACK A FIXED RESIDENCE AND WHO ARE UNDER SUPERVISION.** Offenders who lack a fixed residence and who are under the supervision of the department shall register in the county of their supervision.

(viii) **OFFENDERS WHO MOVE TO, WORK, CARRY ON A VOCATION, OR ATTEND SCHOOL IN ANOTHER STATE.** Offenders required to register in Washington, who move to another state, or who work, carry on a vocation, or attend school in another state shall register a new address, fingerprints, and photograph with the new state within three business days after establishing residence, or after beginning to work, carry on a vocation, or attend school in the new state. The person must also send written notice within three business days of moving to the new state or to a foreign country to the county sheriff with whom the person last registered in Washington state. The county sheriff shall promptly forward this information to the Washington state patrol.

(b) The county sheriff shall not be required to determine whether the person is living within the county.

(c) An arrest on charges of failure to register, service of an information, or a complaint for a violation of RCW 9A.44.132, or arraignment on charges for a violation of RCW 9A.44.132, constitutes actual notice of the duty to register. Any person charged with the crime of failure to register under RCW 9A.44.132 who asserts as a defense the lack of notice of the duty to register shall register within three business days following actual notice of the duty through arrest, service, or arraignment. Failure to register as required under this subsection (4)(c) constitutes grounds for filing another charge of failing to register. Registering following arrest, service, or arraignment on charges shall not relieve the offender from criminal liability for failure to register prior to the filing of the original charge.

(5)(a) If any person required to register pursuant to this section changes his or her residence address within the same county, the person must provide, by certified mail, with return receipt requested or in person, signed written notice of the change of address to the county sheriff within three business days of moving.

(b) If any person required to register pursuant to this section moves to a new county, within three business days of moving the person must register with the county sheriff of the county into which the person has moved and provide, by certified mail, with return receipt requested or in person, signed written notice of the change of address to the county sheriff with whom the person last

EIGHTY SECOND DAY, MARCH 31, 2017

2017 REGULAR SESSION

registered. The county sheriff with whom the person last registered is responsible for address verification pursuant to RCW 9A.44.135 until the person completes registration of his or her new residence address.

(6)(a) Any person required to register under this section who lacks a fixed residence shall provide signed written notice to the sheriff of the county where he or she last registered within three business days after ceasing to have a fixed residence. The notice shall include the information required by subsection (2)(a) of this section, except the photograph ~~((and))~~, fingerprints, and palmprints. The county sheriff may, for reasonable cause, require the offender to provide a photograph and fingerprints. The sheriff shall forward this information to the sheriff of the county in which the person intends to reside, if the person intends to reside in another county.

(b) A person who lacks a fixed residence must report weekly, in person, to the sheriff of the county where he or she is registered. The weekly report shall be on a day specified by the county sheriff's office, and shall occur during normal business hours. The person must keep an accurate accounting of where he or she stays during the week and provide it to the county sheriff upon request. The lack of a fixed residence is a factor that may be considered in determining an offender's risk level and shall make the offender subject to disclosure of information to the public at large pursuant to RCW 4.24.550.

(c) If any person required to register pursuant to this section does not have a fixed residence, it is an affirmative defense to the charge of failure to register, that he or she provided written notice to the sheriff of the county where he or she last registered within three business days of ceasing to have a fixed residence and has subsequently complied with the requirements of subsections (4)(a)(vi) or (vii) and (6) of this section. To prevail, the person must prove the defense by a preponderance of the evidence.

(7) A sex offender subject to registration requirements under this section who applies to change his or her name under RCW 4.24.130 or any other law shall submit a copy of the application to the county sheriff of the county of the person's residence and to the state patrol not fewer than five days before the entry of an order granting the name change. No sex offender under the requirement to register under this section at the time of application shall be granted an order changing his or her name if the court finds that doing so will interfere with legitimate law enforcement interests, except that no order shall be denied when the name change is requested for religious or legitimate cultural reasons or in recognition of marriage or dissolution of marriage. A sex offender under the requirement to register under this section who receives an order changing his or her name shall submit a copy of the order to the county sheriff of the county of the person's residence and to the state patrol within three business days of the entry of the order.

(8) Except as may otherwise be provided by law, nothing in this section shall impose any liability upon a peace officer, including a county sheriff, or law enforcement agency, for failing to release information authorized under this section."

On page 1, line 2 of the title, after "records;" strike the remainder of the title and insert "and amending RCW 9.41.070, 9.41.173, and 9A.44.130."

Senator Padden spoke in favor of adoption of the committee striking amendment.

The acting President Pro Tempore (Senator Frockt presiding) declared the question before the Senate to be the adoption of the committee striking amendment by the Committee on Law & Justice to House Bill No. 1965.

The motion by Senator Padden carried and the committee striking amendment was adopted by voice vote.

#### MOTION

On motion of Senator Padden, the rules were suspended, House Bill No. 1965 as amended by the Senate was advanced to third reading, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Senators Padden and Pedersen spoke in favor of passage of the bill.

#### PARLIAMENTARY INQUIRY

Senator Liias: "Mr. President, I am wondering if the amendment passed by the Senate is enrolled upon passage by the Senate or after the House concurs. I wonder if you could give us guidance on that?" [laughter]

#### REPLY BY THE PRESIDENT PRO TEMPORE

Acting President Pro Tempore Frockt: "When the bill is complete it will be enrolled."

The acting President Pro Tempore (Senator Frockt presiding) declared the question before the Senate to be the final passage of House Bill No. 1965 as amended by the Senate.

#### ROLL CALL

The Secretary called the roll on the final passage of House Bill No. 1965 as amended by the Senate and the bill passed the Senate by the following vote: Yeas, 45; Nays, 0; Absent, 1; Excused, 3.

Voting yea: Senators Angel, Bailey, Baumgartner, Becker, Braun, Brown, Carlyle, Chase, Cleveland, Conway, Darneille, Ericksen, Fain, Frockt, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Hobbs, Honeyford, Hunt, Keiser, King, Kuderer, Liias, McCoy, Miloscia, Mullet, O'Ban, Padden, Palumbo, Pearson, Pedersen, Ranker, Rivers, Rolfes, Rossi, Saldaña, Schoesler, Sheldon, Short, Takko, Walsh, Warnick, Wellman, Wilson and Zeiger

Absent: Senator Fortunato

Excused: Senators Billig, Nelson and Van De Wege

HOUSE BILL NO. 1965, having received the constitutional majority, was declared passed. There being no objection, the title of the bill was ordered to stand as the title of the act.

#### MOTION

On motion of Senator Fain, Senator Fortunato was excused.

#### PERSONAL PRIVILEGE

Senator Baumgartner: "Well, Mr. President, we do have a member here as was noted earlier that will be having her birthday, a very special birthday, tomorrow. And Mr. President, you are known as perhaps the golden voice of the Washington State Legislature, at least here in the Senate, and I was hoping Mr. President, that you might lead us in a rendition of Happy Birthday. You may start acapella if you wish Mr. President, if you would so indulge the body. But we could also do it with you. That would be my point of personal privilege, Mr. President."

#### REPLY BY THE PRESIDENT PRO TEMPORE

Acting President Pro Tempore (Senator Frockt presiding): “Thank you, Senator Baumgartner. I think the public has not paid for me to sing acapella in my duties as Senator but perhaps when we are done we can be happy in all singing ‘Happy Birthday’ to Senator Saldaña. Maybe Senator Walsh could lead the singing.”

Senator Walsh rose and led the Senate in a rendition of ‘Happy Birthday’ in honor of Senator Saldaña’s birthday.

#### PERSONAL PRIVILEGE

Senator Liias: “Thank you Mr. President. I just don’t want to leave out the fact that Senator Rolfes also celebrated a milestone last weekend and so could we just retroactively apply that song to her as well.”

#### REPLY BY THE PRESIDENT PRO TEMPORE

Acting President Pro Tempore (Senator Frockt presiding): “So ordered.”

#### SECOND READING

HOUSE BILL NO. 1629, by Representatives Sells and Manweller

Extending the redetermination timeline regarding appeals to the department of labor and industries.

The measure was read the second time.

#### MOTION

On motion of Senator Keiser, the rules were suspended, House Bill No. 1629 was advanced to third reading, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Senator Keiser spoke in favor of passage of the bill.

The acting President Pro Tempore (Senator Frockt presiding) declared the question before the Senate to be the final passage of House Bill No. 1629.

#### ROLL CALL

The Secretary called the roll on the final passage of House Bill No. 1629 and the bill passed the Senate by the following vote: Yeas, 45; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 4.

Voting yea: Senators Angel, Bailey, Baumgartner, Becker, Braun, Brown, Carlyle, Chase, Cleveland, Conway, Darneille, Ericksen, Fain, Frockt, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Hobbs, Honeyford, Hunt, Keiser, King, Kuderer, Liias, McCoy, Miloscia, Mullet, O’Ban, Padden, Palumbo, Pearson, Pedersen, Ranker, Rivers, Rolfes, Rossi, Saldaña, Schoesler, Sheldon, Short, Takko, Walsh, Warnick, Wellman, Wilson and Zeiger

Excused: Senators Billig, Fortunato, Nelson and Van De Wege

HOUSE BILL NO. 1629, having received the constitutional majority, was declared passed. There being no objection, the title of the bill was ordered to stand as the title of the act.

Senator Rivers, acting President Pro Tempore, assumed the chair.

#### SECOND READING

SENATE BILL NO. 5130, by Senators Rivers, Conway and Chase

Increasing marijuana license fees and adding a temporary additional fee on marijuana licenses issued by the Washington state liquor and cannabis board.

The measure was read the second time.

#### MOTION

On motion of Senator Baumgartner, the rules were suspended, Senate Bill No. 5130 was advanced to third reading, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Senators Baumgartner and Keiser spoke in favor of passage of the bill.

The acting President Pro Tempore (Senator Rivers presiding) declared the question before the Senate to be the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5130.

#### ROLL CALL

The Secretary called the roll on the final passage of Senate Bill No. 5130 and the bill passed the Senate by the following vote: Yeas, 35; Nays, 10; Absent, 0; Excused, 4.

Voting yea: Senators Angel, Bailey, Baumgartner, Becker, Braun, Brown, Carlyle, Chase, Cleveland, Conway, Darneille, Fain, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Hobbs, Honeyford, Hunt, Keiser, King, Kuderer, Liias, McCoy, Miloscia, Mullet, O’Ban, Padden, Pearson, Pedersen, Ranker, Rivers, Rossi, Saldaña, Wellman, Wilson and Zeiger

Voting nay: Senators Ericksen, Frockt, Palumbo, Rolfes, Schoesler, Sheldon, Short, Takko, Walsh and Warnick

Excused: Senators Billig, Fortunato, Nelson and Van De Wege

SENATE BILL NO. 5130, having received the constitutional majority, was declared passed. There being no objection, the title of the bill was ordered to stand as the title of the act.

#### SECOND READING

SENATE BILL NO. 5248, by Senators Rivers, Cleveland, Becker, Carlyle and Kuderer

Concerning persons to whom the department of health may provide prescription monitoring program data. Revised for 1st Substitute: Concerning the requirements for prescribing opioids.

#### MOTIONS

On motion of Senator Becker, Substitute Senate Bill No. 5248 was substituted for Senate Bill No. 5248 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading and read the second time.

On motion of Senator Becker, the rules were suspended, Substitute Senate Bill No. 5248 was advanced to third reading, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Senators Becker, Cleveland and Carlyle spoke in favor of passage of the bill.

The acting President Pro Tempore (Senator Rivers presiding) declared the question before the Senate to be the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5248.

EIGHTY SECOND DAY, MARCH 31, 2017

2017 REGULAR SESSION

## ROLL CALL

The Secretary called the roll on the final passage of Substitute Senate Bill No. 5248 and the bill passed the Senate by the following vote: Yeas, 46; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 3.

Voting yea: Senators Angel, Bailey, Baumgartner, Becker, Braun, Brown, Carlyle, Chase, Cleveland, Conway, Darneille, Ericksen, Fain, Fortunato, Frockt, Hasegawa, Hawkins, Hobbs, Honeyford, Hunt, Keiser, King, Kuderer, Lias, McCoy, Miloscia, Mullet, O'Ban, Padden, Palumbo, Pearson, Pedersen, Ranker, Rivers, Rolfes, Rossi, Saldaña, Schoesler, Sheldon, Short, Takko, Walsh, Warnick, Wellman, Wilson and Zeiger

Excused: Senators Billig, Nelson and Van De Wege

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5248, having received the constitutional majority, was declared passed. There being no objection, the title of the bill was ordered to stand as the title of the act.

Senator Sheldon, President Pro Tempore, resumed the chair.

## MOTION

On motion of Senator Fain, the Senate advanced to the eighth order of business.

## MOTION

Senator Baumgartner moved adoption of the following resolution:

SENATE RESOLUTION  
8644

By Senators Baumgartner, Billig, Warnick, and Hunt

WHEREAS, The Gonzaga men's basketball team has dominated the March Madness NCAA playoffs and advanced to the Final Four semifinal matchup against South Carolina; and

WHEREAS, A Pacific Northwest team has not advanced to the Final Four since Seattle University did it in 1958; and

WHEREAS, Gonzaga has developed a culture and tradition of winning beginning with the leadership of coach Dan Fitzgerald, who led the team to its first NCAA appearance in 1995, and continuing with the success of Dan Monson, who brought Gonzaga to its first Elite Eight appearance in 1999; and

WHEREAS, Head Coach Mark Few has created a culture of ownership and responsibility built on a unique attention to player development and an attitude of loyalty and persistence; and

WHEREAS, Coach Few has led the Zags to an NCAA tournament appearance in each of his 17 years as head coach, including fifteen West Coast Conference titles, five Sweet 16 appearances, and one Elite Eight competition; and

WHEREAS, Gonzaga has become a national powerhouse and a place where athletes come to be a part of a winning culture and something bigger than themselves; and

WHEREAS, Gonzaga demonstrates a high level of student achievement on and off the court, leading the nation with 80 percent of Gonzaga sports teams scoring at the top of the Academic Progress Rate score for academic achievement; and

WHEREAS, The Zags outlasted West Virginia in the Sweet 16 round and manhandled Xavier in the Elite Eight; and

WHEREAS, South Carolina should tremble at having to face the speed and endurance of the mighty Bulldogs this Saturday in the Final Four;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Washington State Senate honor the success of the Gonzaga men's basketball team in reaching the Final Four of the NCAA tournament; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Senate commend Head Coach Mark Few for his leadership in crafting a national powerhouse that is now contending for a national title; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Washington State Senate fully support the Gonzaga Bulldogs in their game on Saturday and will be cheering for a victory; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a copy of this resolution be immediately transmitted by the Secretary of the Senate to Gonzaga University.

Senators Baumgartner, Frockt, Padden, Conway and Warnick spoke in favor of adoption of the resolution.

Senator Erickson spoke on the adoption of the resolution.

The President Pro Tempore declared the question before the Senate to be the adoption of Senate Resolution No. 8644.

The motion by Senator Baumgartner carried and the resolution was adopted by voice vote.

## MOTION

At 11:19 a.m., on motion of Senator Fain, the Senate adjourned until 12:00 o'clock noon Monday, April 3, 2017.

TIM SHELDON, President Pro Tempore of the Senate

HUNTER G. GOODMAN, Secretary of the Senate